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U.S. Department of Justice

Criminal Division

1400 New York Avenue, N.W.
Fourth Floor Bond Building
Washington, D.C. 20005

March @Q-zol 0
Martin J. Weinstein Carl S. Rauh
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP Hogan & Hartson LLP
1875 K Street, N.W. 555 Thirteenth Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006 Washington, DC 20004 5
Gary DiBianco B
Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP *
1440 New York Avenue, N.W. 4
Washington, DC 20005

RE: United States v. DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ

Gentlemen:

1. This letter sets forth the full and complete plea offer to your client, DaimlerChrysler
Automotive Russia SAO now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO (hereinafter “DCAR” or
“defendant”). This offer is by the Criminal Division, Fraud Section, of the U.S. Department of
Justice (hereinafter the “Department or “Fraud Section™), and thus does not bind any other division
or section of the Departfnent of Justice or any other federal, state, or local prosecuting,
administrative, or regulatory authority. This agreement does not apply to any charges other than
those spéciﬁcally mentioned herein. However, the Department will bring this agreement and the
cooperation of DCAR, its parent Daimler AG, and its direct or indirect affiliates and subsidiaries to
the attention of other authorities or other agencies, if requested. Upon receiptand execution by or
on behalf of DCAR, the executed letter will itself become the plea agreement (the “Agreement”).
The terms of the offer are as follows:

2. Charges: Pursuantto Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c)(1)(C), DCAR agrees to waive its right

to grand jury indictment and its right to challenge venue in the United States District Court for the
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District of Columbia, and to plead guilty to a two-count information charging DCAR with conspiracy
to commit an offense against the United States, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371, that is, to violate the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA™), as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3 (Count One), and with
violating of the anti-bribery provisions of the FCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3 (Count Two). It is
understood that the guilty plea will be based on a factual admission of guilt to the offenses charged
and will be entered in accordance with Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. An

authorized representative of DCAR will admit that DCAR is in fact guilty. By virtue of a corporate

resolution dated , in the form attached to this Agreement as Attachment B, or a
substantially similar form, DCAR has authorized this plea and has empowered thé General Counsel
of Daimler AG (“Daimler”) and/or its outside counsel — Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP, Hogan &
Hartson LLP, and Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP — to act on its behalt for purposes of
this plea. DCAR agrees that it has the full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and perform
- all of its obligations under this Agreement, and it agrees to abide by all_terms and obligations of this
Agreement as described herein. The “Statement of the Offense” attached to this Agreement as
Attachment A is a fair and accurate description of the facts the Department believes, and DCAR
accepts, can be proved beyond a reasonable doubt and through admissible evidence regarding
defendant's actions and inv.olvement in the offense. DCAR is pleading guilty because it is guilty of
the charges contained in the accompanying Information and admits and accepts responsibility for the
conduct described in the Statement of the Offense. Prior to the Rule 11 plea hearing, defendant,
through counsel, will adopt and sign the Statement of the Offense as a written proffer of evidence

by the United States.
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3. Potential penalties, assessments, and restitution: The statutory maximum sentence

that the Court can impose for a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371, is a fine of
$500,000 or twice the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever is greatest, 18
U.S.C. §§ 3571(c)(3) and (d); five years’ probation, 18 U.S.C § 3561(c)(1); and a mandatory special
assessment of $400, 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)(B). The statutory maximum sentence that the Court can
impoée for each violation of Title 15, United States Code, Section 78dd-3, is a fine of $2,000,000,
15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3(e), or twice the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever
is greatest, 18 U.S.C. § 3571(d); five years’ probation, 18 U.S.C § 3561(c)(1); and a mandatory
special assessment of $400, 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)}(B). The statutory maximum sentences for
multiple counts can be aggregated and run éonsecutive}y. Restitution obligations, ifany, are satisfied

in light of the Judgment being entered in the companion case of U.S. Securities and Exchange

Commission v. Daimler AG and that probation is not necessary in light of DCAR’s acceptance and

acknowledgment of the monitorship provisions in the deferred prosecution agreement entered into
simultaneously herewith by the Department and Daimler, DCAR’s parent.

4. Federal Sentencing Guidelines: The parties agree that pursuant to United States

v. Booker, 543 U.S. 220 (2005), the Court must determine an advisory sentencing guideline range
pursuant to the United States Sentencing Guidelines (“USSG”or “Sentencing Guidelines”). The
Court will then determine a reasonable sentence within the statutory range after considering the
advisory sentencing guideline range and the factors listed in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). The parties agree
that for purposes of determining an advisory sentencing guideliﬁe range, the 2006 Sentencing

Guidelines apply as follows:
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(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Base Offense. Based upon USSG § 2C1.1, the total offense level is 34,
calculated as follows:

(a)(2) Base Offense Level 12

(b)(1) Specific Offense Characteristic
(More than one bribe) +2

(b)(2) Specific Offense Characteristic
(Value of Benefit Received > $7,000,000
and < $20,000,000 based on
transactions with U.S. nexus, taking
the greater of the corrupt payment or the
benefit received for each transaction pursuant
to USSG § 2C1.1, comment. (n. 3)) +20

TOTAL 34
Base Fine. Based upon USSG § 8C2.4(a)(1), the base fine is $28,500,000
(fine corresponding to the Base Offense level as provided in Offense Level

Table).

Culpability Score. Based upon USSG § 8C2.5, the culpability score is 6,
calculated as follows:

(a)  Base Culpability Score 5

(b)(3) The organization had 200 or more
employees and tolerance of the
offense by substantial authority personnel
was pervasive throughout the organization +3

(g)  The organization fully cooperated in
investigation and clearly demonstrated

recognition and affirmative acceptance of
responsibility for its criminal conduct -2

TOTAL 6

Calculation of Fine Range:

Base Fine $28,500,000
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Multipliers 1.2(min)/2.40(max)
Fine Range $34,200,000 /
$68,400,000

The parties agree that the offenses of conviction should be grouped together for purposes of

sentencing pursuant to USSG § 3D1.2.

5. Penalties and Assessments: Pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c)(1)(C), the
Department and the defendant agree that DCAR shall pay a monetary penalty of $27,360,000, and
a special assessment of $800. This monetary penalty represents a 20% reduction below the bottom
of the Sentencing Guidelines range. The Department and the defendant agree that this is the
appropriate sentence in the case, after consideration of: (a) the Sentencing Guidelines; (b) the
payment of monetary penalties and/or disgorgement in other related criminal and civil proceedings
inthe U.S. by DCAR’s parent, Daimler, and its affiliates, Daimler Export and Trade Finance GmbH
and DaimlerChrysler China Ltd.; {¢) DCAR’s acknowledgment of and inclusion in Daimler AG’s
substantial compliance and rerﬁediation efforts and rehabilitation, as outlined in the Department’s
Sentencing Memorandum; and (d) the factors set forthin 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). The parties agree and
stipulate that the factors mentioned above and described in the Department’s Sentencing
Memorandum represent mitigating circumstances “of a kind, or to a degree, not adequately taken
into consideration by the United States Sentencing Commission.” 18 U.S.C. § 3553(b)(1). This
$27,360,000 monetary penalty and the $800 special assessment shall be paid to the Clerk of Court,
United States District Court for the District of Columbia, within ten (10) days of sentencing, The
parties agree that this $27,360,000 penalty shall be offset against the $93,600,000 monetary penalty

being paid by Daimler as part of its deferred prosecution agreement entered into sitmultancously
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herewith, in accordance with the terms of Daimler’s agreement. DCAR acknowledges that no tax
deduction may be sought in connection with payment of any part of its $27,360,000 monetary
penalty or any part of Daimler’s $93,600,000 payment allocable to DCAR.

6. Courtis Not Bound: Defendantunderstands that, if the Court rejects this Agreement,

the Court must: (a) inform the parties that the Court rejects the Agreement; (b) advise the
* defendant’s counsel that the Court is not required to follow the Agreement and afford the defendant
the opportunity to withdraw its plea; and (c) advise the defendant that if the plea is not withdrawn,
the Court may dispose of the case less favorably toward the defendant than the Agreement
contemplated. The defendant further understands that if the Court refuses to accept any provision
of this Agreement, neither party shall be bound by the provisions of the Agreement.

7. Waiver of Rights: Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11(f) and Federal Rule of

Evidence 410 limit the admissibility of statements made in the course of plea proceedings or plea
discussions in both civil and criminal proceedings, if the guilty plea is later withdrawn. The
defendant expressly warrants that it has discussed these rules with its counsel and understands them.
Solely to the extent set forth below, the defendant voluntarily waives and gives up the rights
cnumerated in Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11(f) and Federal Rule of Evidence 410.
Specifically, the defendant understands and agrees that any statements that it makes in the course of
its guilty plea or in connection with this plea Agreement are admissible against it for any purpose
m any U.S. federal criminal proceeding if, even though the Department has fulfilled all of its
obligations under this Agreement and the Court has imposed the agreed-upon sentence, DCAR
nevertheless withdraws its guilty plea.

The parties further agree, with the permission of the Court, to waive the requirement for a
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pre-sentence report pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32(c)(1)(A), based on a finding
by the Court that the record contains information sufficient to enable the Court to meaningfully
exercise its sentenéing power. The parties agree, however, that in the event the Court orders the
preparation of a pre-sentence report prior to sentencing, such order will not affect the Agreement set
forth herein.

The parties further agree to ask the Court’s permission to combine the entry of the plea and
sentencing into one proceeding. However, the parties agree that in the event the Court orders that
the entry of the guilty plea and sentencing hearing occur at separate proceedings, such an brder will
not affect the Agreement set forth herein.

If the Court orders a pre-sentence investigation report or a separate sentencing date, the

parties agree to waive the time requirements for disclosure of and objections to the pre-sentence
investigation report under Fed. R. Crim. P. 32(e), so as to accommodate a sentencing hearing prior
to the date that would otherwise apply. At the time of the plea hearing, the parties will suggest
mutually agreeable and convenient dates for the sentencing hearing with adequate time for (a) any
objections to the pre-sentence report, and (b) consideration by the Court of the pre-sentence report
and the parties’ sentencing submissions.
8. Press Releases: The defendant agrees that if it or any of its direct or indirect affiliates
or subsidiaries issues a press release in connection with this Agreement, DCAR shall first consult
the Department to determine whether (a) the text of the release is truel and accurate with respect to
matters between the Department and DCAR; and (b) the Department has no objection to the release.

Statements at any press conference concerning this matter shall be consistent with this press release.
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9. Sales, Mergers or Transfers: Except as may otherwise be agreed by the parties

hereto in connection with a particular transaction, the defendant agrees that in the event it sells,
merges or transfers all or substantially all of its business operations, or all or substantially all of one
of its individual operating divisions and businesses, as they exist as of the date of this Agreement,
~ whether such sale(s) is/are structured as a stock or asset sale, merger, or transfer, DCAR shall
include in any such contract for sale, merger or transfer, a provision fully binding the purchaser(s)
or any successor(s) in interest thereto to the obligations described in this Agreement. In considering
requests for exemption from or modifications of this requirement, the Department agrees to consider
in good faith DCAR’s compliance history with respect to the business, and all other relevant facts
and circumstances including the need for and cost of compliance with this provision.

10. Continuing Cooperation: DCAR shall: (a) plead guilty as set forth in this

Agreement; (b) abide by all sentencing stipulations contained in this Agreement; (c) appear, through
its duly appointed representatives, as ordered for all court appearances and obey any other ongoing
court order in this matter; (d) commit no further state or federal offense; (¢) be truthful at all times
with the Court; (f) pay thé applicable fine and special assessment; and (g) conﬁﬁue to cooperate fully
with the Department and the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. At the request of the
Departinent, and consistent with applicable law and regulation, the defendant shall also cooperate
fully with such other domestic or foreign law enforcement agencies, as well as the Multilateral
Development Banks (“MDBs™), in any investigation of the defendant, or any of its present and
former employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors, and subsidiaries, or any other
party, in any and all matters relating to improper payments, related false books and records, and

inadequate internal controls, and in such manner as the parties may agree. DCAR shall truthfully
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disclose all non-privﬂe'ged information with respéct to the activities of DCAR and its subsidiaries
or affiliates, it:_s present and former employees, agents, consultants, contractors, and subcontractors,
concerning all matters relating to improper payments in connection with their operations, related
false books and records, or inadequate internal controls about which DCAR has any knowledge and
about which the Department, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or, at the request of the
Department, any mutually agreed upon other foreign or domestic law enforcement authorities and
agencies, shall inquire. This obligation oftruthful disclosure includes the obligation, consistent with
applipable law or regulation including labor, data protection, and privacy laws, to provide, upon
request, any non-privileged documient, record, or other tangible evidence in the custody and control
of DCAR relating to such improper payments, false books and records, and inadequate internal
controls about which the aforementioned authorities and agencies shall inquire of DCAR, subject
to the direction of the Department and the agreement of the parties where appropriate. In addition,
with respect to any issue relevant to the Department’s investigation of corrupt payments or related
false books and records and inadequate internal controls in connection with the operations of DCAR,
or any of its present or former subsidiaries or affiliates, DCAR shall use its best efforts to make
available for interviews or testimony, as requested by the Department, present or former employees,
agents, and consultants of DCAR, as well as directors, officers, employees, agents, and conéultants
- of conﬁactors and subcontractors. All such requests for information shall be made through Daimler,
unless the parties otherwise agree. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require DCAR
to conduct any further investigation other than as necessary to identify and produce relevant non-

privileged documents, recbrds or other tangible evidence within the custody and control of DCAR.
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11. Remediation: DCAR acknowledges and accepts that it will be monitored by a
corporate compliance monitor (the “Monitor”) pursuant to the terms of Daimler’s deferred
prosecution agreement entered into simultaneously herewith.

12. Department Concessions: In exchange for the defendant's guilty plea, the guilty

plea entered by Daimler Export and Trade Finance GmbH, the entry into deferred prosecution
agreements by Daimler and DaimlerChrysler China Ltd., and the complete fulfillment of all of the
defendant’s obligations under this Agreement, the Department agrees not to use any information
related to the conduct described in the accompanying Information and Statement of the Offense, or
related to any other conduct disclosed to the Department prior to the date of this Agreement, against
the defendant or any of its present or former subsidiaries or affiliates in any criminal case except in
a prosecution for perjury or obstruction of justice, in a prosecution for making a false statement after
the date of this Agreement, or in a prosecution or other proceeding relating to any crime of violence.
In addition, the Department agrees that it will not bring any criminal charge against the defendant,
or any of its present or former subsidiaries or affiliates for conduct that: (i) arises from or relates.in
any way to the conduct of the defendant or its present and former employees, consultants, and agents
described in the accompanying Information and Statement of the Offense or the Informations and
Statements of the Offense accompanying the plea of Daimler Export and Trade Finance GmbH and
the deferred prosecution agreements of Daimler and DaimlerChrysler China Ltd.; or (ii) arises from
or relates in any way to information disclosed by the defendant to the Department prior to the date
of this Agreement, or related to undisclosed, unknown conduct of a similar scale and nature that took
place prior to the date of this Agreement. This paragraph does not provide any protection against
prosecution for any corrupt payments, false books and records, or circumvention of internal controls,

if any, made in the future by the defendant, or any of its employees, agents, or consultants, whether
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or not disclosed by the defendant pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. This Agreement will not
close or preclude the investigation or prosecution of any natural persons, including any current or
former employees, stockholders, consultants, or agents of the defendant, of'its present or future direct
or indirect affiliates or of its present or future subsidiaries who may have been involved in any of the
matters set forth in the accompanying Statement of the Offense or in any other matters. Finally, the
Department agrees that it will file a Sentencing Memorandum in support of the proposed agreed-
upon sentence that willinclude a description of: (&) relevant facts; (b) the nature of the offenses; and
(c) Daimler’s (and DCAR’s) cooperation, compliance, and remediation measures.

13. ~ Fuoll Disclosure/Reservation of Rights: In the event the Court directs the

preparation of a pre-sentence report, the Department will fully inform the preparer of the pre-
sentence report and the Court of the facts and law related 1o the defendant’s case. Except as set forth
in this Agreement, the parties reserve all other rights to make sentencing recommendations and to
respond to motions and arguments by the opposition.

14. | Waiver of Appeal Rights: The defendant knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily

waives its right to appeal the conviction in this case. The defendant similarly knowingly,
mtelligently, and voluntarily waives its right to appeal the sentence imposed by the Court, provided
such sentence is consistent with the terms of this Agreement. Ther defendant waives all defenses
based on the statute of limitations and venue with respect to any prosecution that is not time-barred
on the date this Agreement is signed in the event that: (a) the conviction is later vacated for any
reason; (b) the defendant violates this Agreement; or (¢) the plea is Jater withdrawn. The Department
is free to take any position on appeal or any other post-judgment matter.

15. Breach of Agreement: The defendant agrees that if it fails to comply with any of the

provisions of this Agreement, makes false or misleading statements before the Court, commits any
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further state or.federal offense, or attempts to withdraw the plea after sentencing even though the
Department has fulfilled all of its obligations under this Agreement and the Court has imposed the
sentence (and only the sentence) provided in this Agreement, the Department will have the right to
characterize such conduct as a breach of this Agreement. In the event of such a breach, (a) the
Department will be free from its obligations under the Agreement and may take whatever position
it believes appropriate as to the sentence (for example, should the defendant commit any conduct
after the date of this Agreement — examples of which include, but are not limited to, obstruction of
Justice and false statements to law enforcement agents, the probation office, or the Court — the
Department is free under this Agreement to seek an increase in the sentence based on that post-
agreement conduct); (b) the defendant will not have the right to withdraw the guilty plea; (c) the
defendant shall be fully subject to criminal prosecution for any other crimes which it has committed
or might commit, if any, including perjury and obstruction of justice; and (d) the Department will
be free to use against the defendant, directly and indirectly, in any criminal or civil proceeding any
of the information or materials provided by the defendant pursuant to this Agreement, as well as the
admitted Statement of the Offense.

In the event of such breach, any such prosecutions of the defendant not time-barred by the
applicable statute of limitations on the date of the signing of this Agreement may be commenced
against the defendant in accordance with this paragraph, nowwithstanding the running of the
applicable statute of limitations in the interval between now and the commencement of such
prosecutions. The defendant knowingly and voluntarily agrees to waive any and all defenses based

on the statute of limitations for any prosecutions commenced pursuant to the provisions of this

paragraph.
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In the event that the Department determines that DCAR has breached this Agreement, and
prior to instituting any prosecution resulting from such breach, the Department agrees to provide
DCAR with written notice of such breach, to which DCAR shall, within thirty (30) days, have the
opportunity to respond to the Department in writing to explain the nature and circumstances of such
breach, as well as the actions DCAR has taken to address and remediate the situation, which

explanation the Department shall consider in determining whether to institute any prosecution.
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16. Complete Agyeement: Noagreements, promises, understandings, ot representations
have been made by the parties or their counsel other than those contained in writing herein. Nor will
any such agreements, promises, understandings, or representations be made unless comimnitted to
writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant’s counsel, and an attomney for the U.S.
Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section. If the foregoing terms and conditions are
satisfactory, DCAR may indicate Hs assent by signing the Agreement in the space indicated below
and returning the original once it has been signed by DCAR and its counsel,

AGREED:

FOR DainderChryster Automotive Russia SAO,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO ;

o Lo O

Dr. Gero He , General Counsel
Dannler AG

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

Carl S. Ranh
Hogan & Hartson LLP

Gary DiBianco _
Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP

14
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16. Complete Agreement: Noagresments, promises, understandings, or represcntations

have been made by the partics or their counsel other than those contained in writing herein. Nor will
any such agreements. proniises, understandings, or representations be made unless comnilted 1o
writing and sigmed by the defendant, the defendant’s counsel, and an atlorney for the ULS.
Department of Justice, Critninal Division, Fraud Section. [fthe foregning terms and conditions arc
satisfactory, DCAR may indicate ils assent by signing the Agreement in the space indicated below
and returning the original once it has been signed by DCAR and its counsel.

AGREED:

FOR DaimlerChrysler Automotive Hussin SAQ),
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ :

By:
D, Gero Herrmann, General Coungel
Daimler AG

=

Martin J. Weinstain
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

Carl 8. Rauh
ITogan & Hartson LLP

Gary DiBianco
Skadden Amps Slate Meagher & Flom 1L1LP

14
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16. Complete Agreement: Noagreements, promises, understandings, or representations

have been made by the parties or their counsel other than those contained in writing herein. Nor will
any such agreements, promises, understandings, or representations be made unless committed to
writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant’s counsel, and an attorney for the U.S.
Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section. If the foregoing terms and conditions are
satisfactory, DCAR may indicate its assent by signing the Agreement in the space indicated below
and returning the original once it has been signed by DCAR and its counsel.

AGREED:

FOR DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ

By:
Dr. Gero Herrmann, General Counsel
Daimler AG

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

Lot A A,

Carl S. Rauh

Hogan & Hargson iLLP \{ ‘
ST % \WM@/ .

DlBl
Skadden Slate Meagher & Flom LLP

14
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FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

DENIS J. MCINERNEY
Chief, Fraud Section

By: 7 1/ ol

Mark F. Mendelsohn
Deputy Chief, Fraud Section

John § 'Darden
Assistant Chief, Fraud Section

United States Department of Justice
Criminal Division

1400 New York Ave., N.'W.
Washington, D.C. 20005

(202) 514-7023

Washington, D.C., on this P '2"7{-da of March, 2010.
y

15
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GENERAYL COUNSEL’S CERTIFICATE

| have read this Agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with outside counsel for
DaimterChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ, now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO (“DCAR™).
I understand the terms of this Agreement and voluntarily agree, on behalf of DCAR, to each of its
terms. Before signing this Agreement, I consulted with outside counsel for DCAR, Counsel fully
advised me of the rights of DCAR, of possible defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines® provisions,
and of the consequences of entering into this Agreement.

1 have carefully reviewed the terms of this Agreement with the General Director of DCAR.
I have advised, and caused outside counsel for DCAR 1o advise, the General Director fully of the
rights of DCAR, of possible defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions, and of the
consequences of entering into the Agreement.

No promises or indugements have been made other than those contained in this Agreement.
Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person authorizing this
Agreement on behalf of DCAR, in any way to enter into this Agreement. [am also satisfied with
outside counsels’ representation in this matter. I certify that [ am the General Counsel of Daimler
AG and that I have been duly authorized by DCAR to execute this Agreement on behalf of DCAR.
Date: , 2010

DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now knewn as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ

By: LA« ﬁ/(/vw“

Dr. Gero Herrmann, General Counsel
Daimler Al
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

Weare counscl for DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAOQ, now known as Mercedes-Benz
Russia SAQ (“"DCAR”), and Daimler AG (“Daimler™ in the matter covered by this Apreement. In
connection with such representation, we have examined relevant Dairnler and DCAR documents and
have discussed the terms of this Agreoment with the DCAR General Dircctor, Based on our review
of the foregoing matcrials and discussions, we are of the opinion that: the representative of DCAR
has been duly authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of DCAR and that this Agreement
hag been duly and validly authorized, executed, and delivered on behalf of DCAR and is a valid and
binding oblipation of DCAR. Fuither, we have carefully reviewed the terms of this Agreement with
the General Director of DCAR. We have fully advised him of the rights of DCAR, of possible
defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines® provisions, and of the conscquences of entering mito this
Agreementl, To our knowledge, the decision of DCAR w coler into this Agrecment, based on the

authoriza'ion of the Generzl Director, is an informed and voluntary one,

Date: 2010 //////V\/

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

Carl S. Rauh
Hogan & {lartson LLP

Gary DiBianco
Skadden Arps Slate Meaghot & Flom LLP

Counsel for Daimler AG and
DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

Weare connsel for DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ, now known as Mercedes-Benz
Russia SAO (“DCAR?”), and Daimler AG (“Daimler”) in the matter covered by this Agreement. In
connection with such representation, we have examined relevant Daimler and DCAR documents and
have discussed the terms of this Agreement with the DCAR General Director. Based on our review
of the foregoing materials and discussions, we are of the opinion that: the representative of DCAR
has been duly authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of DCAR and that this Agrcement
has been duly and validly authorized, executed, and delivered on behalf of DCAR and is a valid and
binding obligation of DCAR. Further, we have carefully reviewed the terms of this Agreement with
the General Director of DCAR. We have fully advised him of the rights of DCAR, of possible
defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this
Agreement. To our knowledge, the decision of DCAR 1o enter into this Agreement, based on the

authorization of the General Director, is an informed and voluntary one.

Date: , 2010

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

dﬁf’f" z,zf/ ﬂfﬁ A’ e

Carl S. Rauh
Hogan & Hagtson LLP g“)\\
D1B1 nco

Ska en Al? s Slate Meagher & Flom LLP

Counsel for Daimler AG and
DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, : Criminal No.

Plaintiff, . ~ Conspiracy

v. : 18 U.S.C. § 371
. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

DAIMLERCHRYSLER AUTOMOTIVE : 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3 and
RUSSIAN SAO, . 18U.8.C.§2

Defendant.

STATEMENT OF OFFENSE

The United States and Defendant DAIMLERCHRYSLER AUTOMOTIVE RUSSIA SAO

t

(“DCAR”) agree that the following facts are true and correct:
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

1. Daimler AG, formerly DaimlerChrysler AG and Daimler Benz AG (collectively
“Daimler”), was a German vehicle manufacturing company with business operétions throughout the
world. Among other things, Daimler sold all manner of cars, trucks, vans, and buses, including
Unimogs, heavy duty all terrain trucks primarily used for hauling, and Actros, large commercial
tractor/trailer-style vehicles. Daimler was a major global producer of premium passenger cars, as
well as the largest manufacturer of commercial vehicles in the world. As a result of its luxury car
and commercial vehicles lines, Daimler had among its customers gove.rnment and state-owned
entities from many countries in which it does business. Daimler sold its products worldwide, had
production facilities on five continents, did business in many foreign countries, and employed more

than 270,000 people.
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2. DCAR, now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ, was a Moscow-based, wholly-
owned subsidiary of Daimler. DCAR sold Daimler spare parts, assisted with the sale of vehicles
from various Daimler divisions in Germany, in particular its overseas sales division (“DCOS”) to
government customers in the Russian Federation (“Russia’), and also imported Daimler passenger
and commercial vehicles into Russia for sale to customers and distributors. DCAR, a foreign
corporation, is a “person,” as that term is used in the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. §
78dd-3(f)(1).

3. The Russian Ministry of Internal Affairs, known by its initials in Russian as “MVD,”
was a department and agency of the Russian government principally responsible for policing, militia,
immigration, and other functions. The Russian traffic police fell under the supervision of the MVD.

4, The Special Purpose Garage (“SPG”) was an “instrumentality” of the Russian
government, and individuals employed by the SPG were “foreign officials,” as those terms are used
in the FCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3(H)(2)(A).

5. Machinoimport was a Russian government-owned and controlled purchasing agent
for the city of Moscow. Machinoimport was an “instrumentality” ot the Russian government, and
individuals employed by Machinoimport were “foreign officials,” as those terms are used in the
FCPA, 15 U.8.C. § 78dd-3(H)(2)(A).

6. Dorinvest was a Russian government-owned and controlled purchasing agent for the
city of Moscow. Dorinvest was an “instrumentality” of the Russian government, and individuals
employed by Dorinvest were “foreign officials,” as those terms are used in the FCPA, 15 US.C. §

78dd-3(H(2)(A).
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7. Daimler sold passenger cars and commercial vehicles directly from its headquarters
in Stuttgart, Germany, to its Russian government clients with the assistance of DCAR and Daimler’s
representative office in Moscow. Datmler carried out such sales from DCOS with DCAR acling as
an agent to assist with such direct sales. DCAR and Daimler sold passenger cars, commercial
vehicles, and Unimogs in Russia.

8. Daimler’s business in Russia was substantial. DCAR and Daimler’s government
customers in Russia included the MVD, the SPG, the Russian military, the ¢ily of Moscow, the City
of Ufa, and the City of Novi Urengoi, among others.

BACKGROUND REGARDING DCAR’S BRIBERY

9. Daimler, through DCAR, made improper payments at the request of Russian
government officials or their designees in order to secure business from Russian government
customers. Payments of this nature were made with the knowledge and involvement of the former
senior management of DCAR and DCOS.

10.  DCAR and Daimler sometimes made improper payments to government officials in
Russia to secure business by over-invoicing the customer and paying the excess amount back to the
government officials, or to other designated third parties that provided no legitimate services to
Da.imler or DCAR, with the understanding that such payments would be passed on, in whole or in
part, to Russian government officials. When payments were made to third parties, the payments
were recorded on one of at least nine Daimler debtor accounts.

11. These overpayments were maintained as reserves on Daimler’s books and records in
certain internal debtor accounts, including debtor accounts that were identified by the name of the

government customer with which Daimler and DCAR did business. When requested, Daimler
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employees wired and authorized the wiring of payments from Daimler’s bank accounts in Germany
to, among other destinations, U.S. and Latvian bank accounts beneficially owned by shell companies
with the understanding that the money, in whole or in part, was for the benefit of Russian
government officials.

12. A former senior member of DCAR’s Government Sales and Passenger Car Sales
departments (the “DCAR Government Sales Executive”) authorized these payments to Russian
government officials and designated third paﬁies via Daimler’s debtor accounts, which payments
were intended to induce passenger vehicle sales to Russian government customers. Daimler and
DCAR employees often directed the payments to Russian officials into these officials’ Latvian bank
accounts that were nominally held in the name of shell companies, some of which were U.S.-
registered corporations.

13.  Daimler and DCAR employees also made and authorized the making of cash
payments to Russian government officials employed at Russian government customers, or their
designees, in order to iﬁduce Unimog sales to several Russian government municipalities.

14, Daimler and DCAR recorded the improper payments to Russian government officials
or their designees in their books and records as “‘commissions,” “special discounts,” and “N.A.,”
which translates to “useful payment” or “necessary payment,” and was understood by certain

employees to mean “official bribe.”
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THE CRIMINAL CONDUCT
15.  DCAR and others, known and unknown, took the following action:
Overall Sales

a. Overall, between 2000 and 2005, Daimler’s vehicle sales in Russia, consisting
of sales of passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, and Unimogs, totaled approximately €1.4
billion, of which approximately 5% or €64,660,000 was derived from the sale of vehicles to Russian
government customers. In connection with these vehicle sales, DCAR and Daimler made over €3
million in improper payments to Russian government officials employed at their Russian
- governmental customers, their designees, or to third-party shell companies that provided no
legitimate services to Daimler or DCAR with the understanding that the funds would be passed on,
in whole or in part, to Russian gdvernmcnt officials,

Passenger Car Sales

b. DCAR employees acted as liaisons to Russian government customers,
including the MVD, which included the Russian traffic police. The MVD and the SPG were
Daimler’s principal Russian government customers for passenger cars between 2000 and 2005.
Daimler made improper payments to Russian officials employed at its Russian government
customers directly and through agents and third-party shell companies in order to secure contracts
to sell passenger cars.

c. In total, Daimler and DCAR made approximately €2,866,281 in payments to
23 different parties that Were recorded on the debtor accounts used in connection with sales of

passenger cars to the SPG, at least €1.4 million of which was used to pay bribes directly to Russian
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government officials with the SPG or was used to pay third parties with the understanding that such
payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials with the SPG.

d. In addition, Daimler and DCAR made approximately €3.8 million in payments
to third parties that were recorded on the debtor accounts used in connection with sales of passenger
cars to the MVD, at least €1.8 million of which, in whole or in part, was used to pay bribes to
Russian government officials with the MVD or was used to pay third parties with the understanding
that such payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials with
the MVD.

e. Daimler and DCAR made payments to MVD consultants with the knowledge
that fhose payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials or their
designees in their efforts to obtain and retain business from the Russian MVD,

Commereial Vehicle Sales |

f. Between 2000 and 2005, Daimler sold commercial vehicles directly to
government customers in Russia from its Commercial Vehicles Division in Germany, with the
assistance of DCAR in areas such as contract negbtiations, pricing, and the drafting of contrécts.
The two primary Russian government purchasers of Daimler’s commercial vehicles were
Machinoimport and Dorinvest, both of which were Russian government purchasing agents for the
city of Moscow.

g Between 2000 and 2005, Daimler made improper payments to Russian
government officials employed by state-owned customers and to third-party shell companies in order
to secure contracts (o sell commercial vehicles to those customers. As with passenger car sales, the

improper payments were sometimes derived by inflating the purchase price of the vehicles and
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paying the excess amount back to employees of Daimler’s Russian governmental customers directly
or indirectly through third-party shell companies. Some of these price differentials or “inclusions™
were improperly recorded in Daimler’s books and records as “service reserves,” although certain
Daimler and DCAR employees understood that these price surchargés were intended to be paid as
bﬁbes to Russian government officials or their designees.

h. Between 2000 and 2005, Daimler and DCAR made at least 12 improper
payments totaling approximately €388,724 to seven different third parties in connection with the sale
of commercial vehicles to Russian government customers, including improper payments to an
individual with close ties to the Russian government with the understanding that the payments would
be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials in connection with Daimler’s sale
of cominercial vehicles.

Unimog Sales

1 Daimler sold Unimogs directly from its Unimog division in Germany to its
government customers in Russia. Because of import restrictions, most Unimogs were sold to
Russian governﬁuent purchasing agents, including Dorinvest and Machinoimport.

J- Between 2000 and December 2005, Daimler sold 57 Unimogs to Russian
customers, approximately 90% of which were sold to government entities, totaling approximately
€17.89 million in sales. Thirty -Unimogs were sold to the city of Moscow and its various
subdivisions. Other Russian government purchasers included the Russian military, the city of Ufa,
and the city of Novi Urengoi.

k. Daimler and DCAR made approximately €433,000 in improper payments to

government officials in Russia directly and indirectly through third-party shell companies in order
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to secure contracts to sell Unimogs to Daimler’s Russian government customers. Daimler made
these improper payments in cash and through cr.edits maintained in the company’s omnibus credit
accounts. Daimler generated reserve funds for the improper payments by issuing invoices to its
government cusfomer with prices that included only a partial discount. Daimler ultimately applied
a larger discount and maintained the difference as a credit in Daimler’s books and records. These
tfunds were then withdrawn and paid to the government officials through shell companies.

OVERT ACTS

16.  More specifically, DCAR or at least one of its co-conspirators committed or caused
to be committed, within the territory of the United States and elsewhere, the following acts, among
others:

Improper Payments In Connection With
The Sale Of Passenger Vehicles To The SPG

a. Between in or about February 2001 and March 2005, DCAR and Daimler
made 29 payments totaling approximately €928,023 to the Deutsche Bank account in Slullgart,
Germany, of a Russian government official at the SPG (the “SPG Official”) in connection with
Daimler’s sale of Mercedes Benz passenger cars to the SPG.

b. In orabout April 2003, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of €139,800 from
Daimler’s account in Germany, to Berwick Commercial LLC, a corporation registered in Delaware,
with the understanding that the payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the SPG Official.

c. Between in or about September 2001 and February 2002, DCAR and Daimler

made five payments totaling approxiniately €313,050 from Daimler’s account in Germany to
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Kongress Food Ltd., a corporation with an address in Dublin, lreland, with the understanding that
the payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the SPG Official.

d. Between in or about February 2004 and January 2005, DCAR and Daimler
made six payments totaling approximately €306,356 from Daimler’s account in Germany to Delight
Commercial, Ltd., a corporation with an address in the Seychelles, with the understanding that the
payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the SPG Official.

e. Between in or ébout January 2003 and May 2003, DCAR and Daimler made
three. payments totaling approximately €305,400 from Daimler’s account in Germany to Pyrmont
Alliance Corp., a corporation with an address in the Bahamas, with the understanding that the
payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the SPG Official.

f. In or about January 2005, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of €99,682
from Daimler’s account in Germany to Loretti LLP, a corporation with an address in the United
Kingdom, with the understanding that the payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the
SPG Official.

g. In or about 2005, DCAR and Daimler entered into a retroactive commission
agreement with an individual introduced to Daimler by an employee of the SPG as someone with
close ties to the Russian gévemment whom Daimler could use as an agent through which to make
payments to Russian government officials in exchange for assistance in securing business with the
SPG.

h. In addition to the payments to the SPG Official, and the entities described
above, between in or about July 2001 and November 2005, DCAR and Daimlér made paymeﬁts

totaling approximately €384,619 to at least 11 other shell companies that did not perform services
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for Daimler sufficient to justify the payments with the understanding that these payments would be
passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials in exchange for assistance in securing
business with the SPG.

Improper Payments In Connection With
The Sale of Passenger Vehicles To The Russian MVD

1. Between in or about August 2000 and November 2002,.DCAR and Daimler
made 22 payments totaling approximately €785,225 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a Bank
of America account in San Diego, California, for Sittard Investments, a California corporation, to
secure passenger car sales to the Moscow traffic police.

] Similarly, between in or about January 2003 and June 2004, DCAR and
Daimler made 13 payments totaling approximately €728,302 from Daimler’s account in Germany
to a bank account in Latvia for Novitta Ltd., a Delaware corporation, in connection with passenger
car sales to the MVD,

k. Between in or about January 2005 and May 2005, DCAR and Daimler made
five payments totaling approximately €402,876 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a bank
account in Latvia for Tower Block Ventures, a U.K. corporation, for the benefit of a consultant to
the MVD in connection with passenger car sales to the MVD.

1. ‘Between in or about September 2004 and December 2004, DCAR and
Daimler made three payments totaling approximately €235,200 from Daimler’s accountin Germany
to a bank account in Latvia for Silvarado Ltd., a corporation that provided no legitimate services for

Daimler or DCAR, in connection with passenger car sales to the MVD.

10
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m. Between in or about May 2003 and August 2003, DCAR and Daimler made
four payments totaling approximately €189,291 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a bank
account in Latvia for Capital Alliance Corp., a Florida corporation, in connection with passenger car
sales to the MVD and to the Russian military.

Improper Payments In Connection With
The Sale Of Commercial Vehicles

n. In 2004, DCAR and Daimler made three payments totaling approximately
€58,000 from Daimler’s account in Germany to Technoforex, a Delaware corporation, to secure the
sale of one commercial vehicle to the SPG for approximately €357,814.

Impropcr Payments In Connection With
The Sale of Unimogs

Dorinvest

0. DCAR and Daimler agreed to make commission payments to two senior
members of Dorinvest (the “Dorinvest Officials”), both Russian government officials, of
approximately €7,343 and €2,447, respectively, in order to secure the August 2001 sale of a Unimog
to the city of Moscow.

d. In early 2002, in connection with the sale of seven Unimogs to the city of
Moscow, Daimler wired a payment of approximately $7,000 to the bank account of relatives of one
of the Dorinvest Officials who were living in Jerusalem, Israel.

I. In or about November 2001, DCAR and Daimler also made a payment from
Daimler’s account in Germany of approximately €34,427 to Contrex, a Cyprus corporation

established for the benefit of the wife of one of the Dorinvest Officials.

11
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Machinoimport

S. On or about January 24, 2001, a Daimler employee made a payment of
approximately DM15,000 from Daimler’s account in Germany to the Latvian bank account of
Fidelity Finance Corporation, a Delaware corporation, in connection with the sale of four Unimogs
to qumost, a department within the city of Moscow responsible for bridges and tunnels, with the
understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government
ofﬁcl'als.in order to secure this sale.

t. On or about May 28, 2001, Daimler made a payment of approximately
€30,072.62, also from Daimler’s account in Germany, to Fidelity Finance Corporation’s Latvian
bank account with the understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to
Russian government officials in connection with an additional sale of Unimogs.

Russian Military

u. On or about July 15, 2003, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approximately €5 ,478.09 from Daimler’s account in Germany to the Latvia bank account of Forfun
Co., a Delaware corporation, in connection with the sale of one Unimog to the Russian military, with
the understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian military
officials.

V. On or about January 31, 2002, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approxtmately €19,488 from Daimler’s account in Germany to the Swiss bank account of Northcote
Holdings, a Costa Rican corporation, in connection with the sale of another Unimog to the Russian
military, with the understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to

Russian military officials.

12
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City of Ufa

w. On or about March 19, 2001, April 24, 2001, and June 19, 2001, DCAR and
Daimler made payments totaling approximately DM55,030 from Daimler’s account in Germany to
an official with the Department of Communal Economy and Town Improvements for the City of
Ufa, a Russian municipal government official, as well as another unidentified individual, in
connection with the sale of seven Unimogs to the City of Ufa.

X. In or about February 2001, DCAR and Daimler paid an additional
DM9,191.34 commission to this unidentified individual, as well as another person, in connection
with the City of Ufa’s purchase of an eighth Unimog.
City of Novi Urengoi

y. On or about March 19, 2002, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approximately €7,635 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a senior municipal government official
with the City of Novi Urengoi in connection with the sale of a Unimog to the City of Novi Urengoi.

Z. On or about July 17, 2002, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approximately €26,650 to the bank account of Crofton Allianz, a Delaware corporation, in
connection with the sale of a second Unimog to the City of Novi Urengoi, with the understanding
that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to a Russian government official.

aa. In or about September 2002, a Daimler employee made a separate €4,441.64

payment in cash to the same Russian government official.

13
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DEFENDANT’S ACCEPTANCE

I have read this Statement of Offense. Pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11, and on behalf of
DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ, now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ, Taccept and
acknowledge responsibility for the acis of DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAO’s employees,
agents, and consultants, and I admit that the evidence supporting the Statement of Offense
establishes that DaimlexChrysler Automolive Russia SAQ is guilty of the offenses to which it is

pleading guilty.

Date: 22:0%- 4

{

For DaimierChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO
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SHAREHOLDER'S RESOLUTION
~ OF.
MERCEDES-BENZ RUSSIA §.A.0.

Daimler AG

with its registered seat in Stuttgart (Iocal court
of Stuttgart, HRB 19360) (the "Shareholder"),
represented by Dr. Wolfgang Herb and
Dr. Peter Herz, who are authorized to repi'esent
the Sharcholder jointly,

is the sole Shareholder of
Mercedes—Benz Russia §.A.0.

registered under the laws of the Russian Fed-
eration with the state principal registration
number 1027700258530 (OGRN) having its
registered address at 125167 Moscow, Russia,
39a Leningradskiy Prospect (the "Company™).

L Preamble

PEHIEHHE AKITHOHEFA

3A0 "MEPCEAEC-REHII PYC"

Komuanns " Naiimmep A

C 3APErUCTPHPOBAHHLIM MECTOHAXOKICHHEM B
r. llryrrapre (mectumili cyn r. Ulryrrapra,
HRB 19360) (manee - "Axnmomep"), &
miuesoxropa Wolfgang Herb u moxtopa Peter
Herz, YTIOIHOMOYEHHBIX COBMECTHO
TPSACTABIATE HHTEPECH AKIMOHepa,

ABNAETCH EAUHCTBCHHEIM AKIHOHEPOM
.3A0 "Mepcenec-benn PYC"

3ApErHCTPHPOBAHEONO MO  3aKOHONATENLCTEY
PoccHifckol Denepaltin (OI'PH
1027700258530), ¢ 1opuzHuecknM agpecom:
Pocenn, 125167 1. Mockea, JlenuHrpanckuii
HpoCHeKT, 1. 39a (manee - "Ofmectro').

L Ipeanbyna

*The~Shareholder and"the" Compaiiy-itsélf have
been engaged in discussions with the United
States Department of Justice, Criminal Divi-
sion, Fraud Section ("DOJ") regarding resolv-

ing its investigation of the Company under the -

U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 78dd-1 et seq. (as amended, the "FCPA™. -

In order to resolve such maiters, it is proposed
that the Company enter into a certain agree-
ment with the DOJ whereby the Company shall
plead guilty to certain crimes (the "Plea
Agreement"). )

- 181938.16-Frankfurt Server 1A
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ONpejCNCHHBIX  mpectymienusx (nanee -
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The Shareholder's General Counsel, Gerd T.
Becht, together with investigative and outside
counsel for the Shareholder and the Company,
have advised the general director of the Com-
pany of its rights, possible defenses, the Sen-
tencing Guidelines’ provisions, and the conse-
quences of entering into such agreement with
the DOJ.

1L Shareholder's Resolution

The Shareholder adopts the following reso-
lution; )

1. The Sharehclder agrees that the Company

() accepts and acknowledges the two-
count Information charging the
Company with conspiracy o commit
an offense against the United States,
namely, to violate the anti-bribery
provisions of the FCPA (Count One),
and violating the anti-bribery provi-
sions of FCPA, 15 US.C. § 78dd-3
and 18 U.S8.C. § 2 (Count Two);

(i)~ waives indictment on such charges;

(iii) enters info the Plea Agreement with
the DOJ; and

(iv) agrees to accept a monetary penalty
against MB Russia of $27,360,000,
and to pay $27,360,000 to the United
States Treasury with respect to the
conduct described in the Information
and Statement of the Offense.

181938.16-Frankfurt Server t A
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(ii) orkazamoce or  TpefoBamms o
BBEHECEHHH OPHIHATBHOIO
OOBHHHTENEHOTO aKTa,

(iii) samounno ¢ JIQ Cornaenne o
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obBHHERHAA.
2. The Shareholder hereby grants its consent 2. AKIIHOHEp HACTOMILHM JacT c©BoOe
to the issuance of a power of attorney by COrNACHE HAa  BHIAYY  JIOBEPEHHOCTH
the general director of the Company sub- reHepaneHeiM  apextopom  Obmiectsa,
stantially in the form as attached hereto as CYINECTBEHHO TO (opMe, NPUBEICHHOH B
Annex. IpRaoikeREH K HaCTOAWEMY PEMICHHIO,
No further resolutions are adopted. Bonee . HUKAKHX pemieHHH AKLUMOHEPOM HE
NPHHUMANOCE,
In case of conflict of interpretation of this reso- B cnyvae nporHBOpeunii B TOJIKOBAHMH
lution, the English version shall take priority. HACTOSINEre pelUeHNs  NPEeHMYIGECTREHHYIO
] CHIY HMMeer €ro pelakuns Ha aHrTHACKOM
A3ZBIKE.
Stuttgart, this r. Uryrrapr, nara
For the Shareholder Or vmenn Axnsonepa >

p

U V Dr. Wolfgang Herb

al

i) 14,
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Annex
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Closed Joint Stock Company Mercedes Benz Russia, registered on September 27, 2002, by Administra-
tion of the Ministry for Taxes and Levies of the Russian Federation for the City of Moscow, with state
principal registration number 1027700258530, located at: 39A, Leningradskiy Prospekt, Moscow,
125167, (the “Company™) represented by [...], bomn on [...}, acting on the basis of the Company's Char-
ter and Resolution, dated ...}, who is authorized to represent the Company singly, hereby grants power
of attorney to [...}, [...], [...], each an employee of Daimler AG, with-its registered address at: Mer-
cedesstrasse 137, 70327 Stuttgart, Germany (the “Attorneys-in-fact™), each of them singly, to represent-
the Company in any respect regarding the settiement with the United States Depamnent of Justice (the
"DOJ") in connection with its investigation into Daimler AG, with its registered seat in Stuttgart, regis-
tered with the comnercial register of the local court of Stuttgart under HRB 19360, the shareholder of
the Company, its subsidiaries and its affiliates. The Attorneys-in-fact are in partlcular, without limitation,
authorized to in the Company's name and on the Company's behalf enter into and execute a plea agree-
ment with the DOJ with such changes as the Attorney-in-fact may approve. The Attorneys-in-fact are
authorized to represent the Company generally within the scope of this power of attorney, i.e. to do eve-
rything in its name and on its behalf, take any and al! actions as may be necessary or appropriate and to
execute, approve and amend the forms, terms or provisions of any agreement or other document as may -
be necessary or appropriate to carry out and effectuate the purpose and intent of the foregoing,

Thls power of attorney is subject to Russnan law.
Authontles conferred by this power of attorey may be delegated to other persons,

This power of attorney is valid for one year.

Signature;
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Iiplmoxcemxe

JOBEPEHHOCTh

3axpbitoe AxumonepHoe QOmecrso "Mepeenec-benn PYC", aapermctpuposanHoe Hucnexumeit
Munucrepctsa . Pocchiickolf Mesiepaunn - Mo matoraM U cBopam N7 no  LlewtpansHomy
aIMHHUCTPATHBHOMY OKpYTy r. Mockebl, 27 centaGpa 2002 rona, 38 OCHOBHBIM FOCYIAPCTBEHHLIM -
PETHCTPAIHOHHEIM HoMepoM 1027700258530, pacnoaoxennoe no ampecy: 125167 ropoa Mocksa,
JIeHHHrpa,ucmﬁ npocriekt, A. -39A (manee “O6mecreo”), B mume [...][...] roma poxnenns,
neficTRylomiero Ha ocHoBanun Ycrapa OGmecrsa u Ilpotokona or [...], # YTIIONHOMOUEHHEIT
EIHHOIMYHO NPEICTARNAT HHTEPECk OOulecTsa, HacToAmuM JosepseT [...],[...], kaxasii nsomukics
cotpyaHukoM komnahuu "Maiimnep AI", pacnonoxentoit no anpecy: Tepmanus, 70327 r., Liryrrapr,
‘Mepcenecintpace, 137 {(nanee “NoBepeRnbie AAHA"), KBKIOMY H3 HAX B OTASABHOCTH, TPSNCTARNATL
uutepechl  OGmiecTsa no 'BCGM  BOTPOCAaM MHPOBOTO COIJIAINEHHA B CBASH C NPOBEACHHBIM B
HJenapramenre woetiuun CIIA (nanee "JHO™) pacc/ienoBaHHeM AeATeNbHOCTH axtionepa Obuwiecrea -
komnauuy "Jlafimnep AI™ ¢ mecronaxoxnennem B r. lItyrrapre, [epmaHi®, 3aperncTpHpOBaHHON B
'KOMMEPHECKOM PeecTpe MecTHOro cyna r. Ltyrrapra 3a nomepom HRB 19360, ee noseptmx kommanmif
H apdunupoBanrsix sHE. JoBepeHHBIE NHIA YIIOMHOMOYHBAIOTCS, B YACTHOCTH, Oe3 orpasuseHnii, ot
HMCHH H N0 Mopy4eHHIo ODMEcTsa 3aKII0MHTE M NOANUCATS COMMANIeHNe 0 MpH3naHMK Burbl ¢ IO ¢
HIMEHEHNAMH, KOTOpHie OHH MOFYT YTRepAMTH. JlOBepeHHbie JMUA YTIOTHOMOTUEHE! B UENOM
NPEICTABNATL MHTepeck! OGLIECTBA B PAMKAX HACTOSIHIEH IOBEPEHHOCTH, T.€. CORCPIIATE OT €ro HMEHH
obsie HeOOXOAMMEIE H uesiecoobpastbie AeHCTBHI U HOZNKCHIBATh, YTBOPKIATE H HIMEHATL HOPMY,
YCNOBHA H NONOMEHHA HOOLIX COrmalleHuii W WHBIX IOKyMEHTOB, KOTOPSIE MOTYT GHTH Heoﬁxo,unmumu
UITH 1enecooBpasHBIMH 1A AOCTHKEHHS BHIICH3IONKEHHBIX Lesei H HAMEPEHHH.

Hacroaman Jlosepentocts perynpyercs 3akoHoaarenscTeoM Poccutickol denepaituy.
TlennoMouny, BetaHHLE HacToAMEH JJOBEPEHHOCTBI0, MOTYT GHITH NEpeansl APYIHM JTHLAM.

Cpok peficteua HacToauei JfoBepeHHOCTH | rof ¢ MOMEHTA BhIIAYH,

[Mornuce’

181938.16-Frankfurt Sevver 1A MSW - Draft January 22, 2009 - 4:52 M



Case 1:10-cr-00064-RJL Document 3-1 Filed 03/24/10 Page 40 of 43
AOBEPEHHOCTE
Fopox Mocksa, ZRAJITATE BOCEMOTO fekabps ABe THICAYH JIEBATOTO TOAA.

JaxperToe akumonepnoe obmecrso '"Mepcegec-Benn PYCY, VHH 7707016368,
MecroRaxoxaerne: 125167 r. Mockea, Jlenwnrpanckmii upocnext, 1.39A, saperucrpaporaduce
locyrapersenspM yupenceiinemM MockoBekas perueTpanuosHas manata 01 asrycra 1994 roma 3a
Ne P-4777.17.7, OcHOBHOH ToCYNADCIEEHHEH DErRCTpANBOHHEH mHomep 1027700258530,
CrufIeTenhCTBO O BHeceHMW 3AITHCH B EAMHGI IOCYZAPCTBEHHEH peect] IOPUAMUECKHY JHH
cepust 77 N 005424692 or 27 cemrsbps 2002 roma, B Amie I'eHepambHOro AEpEXTODA
tp. Tepmannn ¥O0prema 3ayspa, gara ponugenus 12 wions 1956 roms, smza cepus M-V
No 1562396, prpana 30 anpests 2009 r. ®MC Poccun, epoik mefictsis ¢ 05 mag 2009 r. mo 05 mas
2010 r.; x macmopty Ne 698729560, srnan Bypromucrpom . Trofumres, OPI, 06 mons 2007 r.,
sapeivcrpaposanHore B PO 1o ampecy: 125167, ropon Mockea, Jlermmarpancxul npociexr,
M3GA, J;(cﬁcTByromem Ha ocHOBaRm® ¥ crasa O0inecTsa u Pewenun ot 20 mons 2004 rona,

HACTOAMEH JIORCPCHHOCTEIG YHOIHOMOYHBAST

H-pa Tepo Xeppmasma, macuopr Ne 320933019, soiaan 02 mona 2007 1. Mopueit ropoaa
Thopsurcxadena-aa-Peline / reHepamsarM koHCybeToM . Can-Tlayny,

I-pa Tomaca AmnrenGaxa, macnopr Ne 507718291, mriaan 01 oxesbpa 2004 r. mopueit
ropoAa Mionexaiima-ga-Pype,

u Jl-pa Bonsgranra Xepba, nacnopr Ne C8IMWVCAG, sriaan 19 nexabps 2007 1. Mapueit
ropoja QuipnepmTagra (Kamegpii w3 HEx — palorHHK komuammm "Halimmep ALY, ¢
3APETHCTPEPOBAMILIM alipecom: ['epMarus, 70327 1. ityTrapt, Mepcenecurrpace 137 (nance -
“NoBepenHbIe MHITA™),

KOIA0MY W3 HAX B OTHCHBHOCTH, B UENAX 3AKIHOYCHMA ¥ NOANHCARHS CODVATUCHUA O
npUsHAHAY ByEEL ¢ Jlenapramenton octunud CLIA (mamee - "IHO™), paspelinTs Beé BOIPOCH
1o nposormomy IO pacenemosanuio tesrenspoct OfmecTsa.

JoBeperHbie /MUa YIONHOMOUHBAIOTCS, B WACTAOCTH, 6e3 OTpAHHYMCHHN, 0T WMEHH M 1O
mopygenso OOmecTsa TMPWEMTL COINANIGHHE O TPFIHAHVE BHAM 0T EMeEr O6mecisa o
BBICTYHATE B CYAE C 9TOH Lenbio. Jlosepennite THNA YIONHOMOYECHE! B NETOM IPeACTABIATE
wHTEpecs! OOmecTsa B paMKax HACTOSIIGH IOBEPEEHOCTH, TO €0Th COBEPIIATE OT 6r0 MMEHH
mobee mecbxomEMEIe 7 HenecoobpasHsle HeHCTBHS H LIOANMCHIBATS, YTHEPKIATS U HIMCHATE
dopmy, YCTOBHA M HOMKCHHER JHOOHX COTNANCHHN ¥ HHEIX NOKYMEHTOR, KOTOPBIC MOTYT GbITS
HEOGXOHMBIME I Heneco0OPasHEIMU TSl TOCTIDKCEHS BRINCA3NOKCHHEIX el # HaMepeHui,

HOJ‘IHDMO‘IHH HPeUOCTaBICHEBIC H&CTOXHIBH ﬂOBepeHHOCTBIO MOI'}’J.‘ GBI HEPENdtibY
IPYTHM ITHIEM.

HOoBepeHHOCTD BEJIAHA ¢ BPABOM HepefoBepAsi, COOKOM /I0 TPHAIATL e
XB€ TBICHTIE ACCATOr0 roda (BKIFOYHTENBHO).

I'enepanbusiif pekTop R L
3A0 "Mepcepec-Benn PYC" JUEGEN SAUEE.

Fopon Mockga, Poccutickas Denepaims
Fsafuars socbMoro nexalps ABE THICATH NeBATOrO ToNa,

Hacrosiuas AOBSPEHAOCTE YAOCTOBEpeH MuoH, JaBpiosoii Onbroi Cepreenodi, HoTapaycoM ropoaa Mockssr,

Hopepennocts comepiiena OF  UMeHH 3axpEITOTO akKUWOHepHOro ofmectsa «Mepcesec-Bemy PVCh ero
T'enepanbapm gupextopoM rp. Nepmanmi FOprenom 3ay3pom, NOANUCABITAM €€ B MOESM NPHCYTCTBHIL

HpasocrocobRocTs  3akpsiToro  akuvoweproro obiwectsa  «Mepeepec-Benny PYCG» #  mowHOMOUMA  ero
HPCACTABETENA NPOBEPeHEL. JIHYROCTS, HONUCABINETD KOREPEHAOCTH YCTARORICHA, HEECHOCOTHOCTS IPOBEpeHa,

jﬁ KOHTOpPEI
pochext, 1.39A
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
The City of Moscow, the twenty eighth day of December two thousand and nine

Closed Joint Stock Company Mercedes-Benz RUS, Individual Taxpayer Number
7707016368, location: 125167, Moscow, Leningradsky prospect, 39A, registered by Moscow
Registration Chamber on August 1, 1994 under No P-4777.17.7, Principal State Registration
Number 1027700258530, Ceriificate of registration entry to Unified State Register of Legal
Entities Series 77 No 005424692 of September 27, 2002, represented by General Dircctor,
citizen of Germany Jiirgen Saner, born on July 12, 1956, visa Series M-VI No 1562396 issued
on April 30, 2009 by the Federal Mipration Service of the Russian Federation, effective from
May 5, 2069 through May 5, 2010, to passport No 698729560 issued by Burghermaster of
Tiibingen, Federal Republic of Germany, on June 6, 2007, registered in the Russian Federation at
the address: 125167, Moscow, Leningradsky prospect, 39A, acting by virtue of the Articles of
Association of the Company and Resolution of Tuly 20, 2004,

by the present Power of Attomey appoints:

Di. Gero Herrmann, passport No 320933019, issued on July 2, 2007 by the town-council of
Ludwigshafen am Rhein / Consulate General of Sao Paolo,

Dr. Thomas Altenbach, passpori No 507718291, issued on October 1, 2004 by the town-council
of Miilheim an der Rubr,

and Dr. Wolfgang Herb, passport No C8SMWVC4G, jssued on December 19, 2007 by the
town-council of Filderstadt (each of them being the employee of Daimler AG with the registered
address: Germany, 70327, Stuttgart, Mercedesstrasse, 137 (hereinafler referred to as the
Attorneys),

each of them separately in order to conclude and sign the plea bargaining agreement with the US
Depariment of Justice (hereinafter referred to as the DOJ), setile all issues related to
investigation carried out by DOJ with respect to the Company activities.

The Attorneys arc authorized, inter alia, without limitations, on behalf of the Company to accept
the plea bargaining agreement on behalf of the Company and appear before the court for this
purpose. The Attorneys are authorized in general to represent the interests of the Company
within the framework of the present Power of Aitorney, ie. to do or execute on behalf of the
Company any necessary and f{eagible acts and to sign, approve and amend form, terms and
provisions of any agreements and other documents which may be necessary or feasible for the
above aims and intentions.

The authorities vested by the present Power of Attorney may be granted to any third party.

The present Power of Atforney and substitution shall be valid until the 31st of December, 2010
(inclusive).

General Director
CISC Mercedes-Beny RUS signature

City ol Moscow, Russian Federation
‘Fhis 28th day of 12ecember, two thousand and ninc.

The present Power of Altorney is certified by me, Davydova Olga Sergeyevna, Notary Public of the City of Moscow.

The presenl Power of Attorocy ig axeesied on behalf of Closed foint Stock Company Mercedes-Beaz RUS by its Genersl
Director, Jiirgen Saver, ciliven of Germany, who signed it before me.

The legal capacity of Closed Joint Stock Company Mercedes-Benz RUS and powers of its representative were checked and
verificd, The identity of the person which signed the present Power of Atfornzy was established, legal capacity checked and
verified.

Repistered in the Register uader No 3-3143
Slate due have been paid in the amount of 750 rubles + 1100 rubles for technical services

Certified outside the premises of the notary’s olfice

af the address: Moscow, Leningradsky prospect, 39A
Nolary Public fsignciture!

Seal: Notary Public of the City of Moscow Davydova O.S,
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Tewer AAHIOr0 JOKYMEIITa ICPCBCH ¢ p}’CCKOFO A3BIKA Ha amuH ek a3nw MEPeBHIYHEK
Kpyrmur Baranui I'piroprepiy

Fepon Mockpa, Tpuguaroro ACKalpi iBe THICKYH JALBATOND 1OjIA.

A, Bepracosa Nanuna ViBarosua, HoTaprye ropona MockBh, CBHACTENRCTRYIO
TOJITHHHOCTS NO/ACH, CHENAHHOH Meperoaurkom Kpyrmuxom Butanuen I'purepsesryeM s

MOCM RPHCYTCTRAR. JIHYIIOCTh CTO YCTAHOBIEHA,

)
3aperncrpapesanc B peectpe 3a Ne /f - 45 Y

Banicxano mo tapudy: 300 pynell.

Lo Bepracosa [.H.

H()Tapﬂy._c:_‘ IRy’
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